ROBERT L. ALDRIDGE, CHARTERED Attorney at Law 1209 North Eighth Street Boise, Idaho 83702-4297 Phone: (208) 336-9880 Attorney for Association

> By-Laws of Rosera Subdivision

Article 1 Name and Location

The name of the Association is Rosera Subdivision Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association". The principal office of the Association shall be located at 3817 Star Valley Road, Boise, Idaho, 83709, or such other and later location as the Board of the Association shall determine. Meetings of the Association and of the Board may be held at such times and places within the State of Idaho, County of Ada, as may be designated by the Board.

Article 2 Definitions

 $\underline{Sestion_1}$. "Association" shall mean and refer to the Rosera Subdivision Association and successors and assignees.

 $\underline{\text{Section}_2}$. "Declarant" shall mean and refer to Pacific Northwest Electric, Inc., and the successors and assigns thereof.

Section 3. "Properties" shall mean and refer to that certain real property and improvements described in the Declaration and Articles of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Rosera Subdivision, Exhibit 1, and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

Section 4. "Common Area" shall mean all real property and improvements owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the Owners, as described in Exhibit 1 to the Declaration.

Section 5. "Lot" shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded subdivision map of the Properties, excluding the Common Area, all as defined on Exhibit 1 to said Declaration.

 $\underline{\underline{Section}}\underline{\underline{6}}$. "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one of more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any Lot, including contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation.

<u>Section 7.</u> "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the above described Declaration, as amended from time to time.

<u>Section 8.</u> "Member" shall mean and refer to those persons or entities entitled to membership as provided in the Declaration.

Article 3 Meeting of Members

<u>Section 1. Annual Meetings</u>. The first annual meeting of the members shall be held within one year from the date of recording of the Declaration, and each subsequent regular annual meeting shall be held on the same day of the same month of each year thereafter, at the hour set by the Board. If the day for the annual meeting is a legal holiday, State or Federal, the meeting will be held on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.

<u>Section 2.</u> <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the president or by the Board, or upon written request of members who are entitled to vote one-fourth (1/4) of the total votes allocated to Lots.

Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary, or other person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least fifteen (15) days before such meeting, to each member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

Section 4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of members entitled to cast, or the proxies entitled to cast, one-sixth (1/6) of the votes allocated to Lots, shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Declaration of these By-Laws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the members entitled to vote thereat shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.

<u>Section 5. froxies.</u> At all meeting of members, each member may vote in sperson or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the member of his tot.

Article 4 Board of Directors Terms of Office

<u>Section 1. Number.</u> The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of not less that three (3) directors, who must be members of the Association.

<u>Section 2. Term of Office</u>. At the first annual meeting the members shall elect one director for a term of one year, one director for a term of two years, and one director for a term of three years; and at each annual meeting thereafter, the members shall elect one director for a term of three years.

Section 3. Removal. Any director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a seventy-five (75.0%) vote of the votes allocated to Lots. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board, and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

<u>Section 4. Compensation</u>. No director shall receive compensation for any service he shall render to the Association. However, any director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

Section 5. Action Taken Without A Meeting. The directors may have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting, by obtaining the written approval of all the directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the directors. Any such action taken shall be ratified at the next regular meeting of the directors, in order to place such action in the minutes of the Board.

<u>Section 6. Manager.</u> The Board may engage the services of a manager or managing agent, as described in the Declaration.

Article 5 Nomination And Election Of Directors

Section 1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two or more members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting of the members, to serve from the close of the said annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting, and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations shall be from among the members only and no person who is not a member, or who does not represent a member which is an entity rather than a person, may serve on the Board.

Section 2. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such elections the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

Article 6 Meetings Of Directors

Section 1. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly, without notice, at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Should said meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday. No meeting shall be held at a day or time which will conflict with any creed or religious belief of a Board Member.

<u>Section 2.</u> <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held. subject to the last sentence of Section 1, when called by the President of the Association, or by any two directors, after not less than three (3) days' notice to every director.

<u>Section 3. Quorum.</u> A majority of the number of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the

directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall—be regarded as the act of the Board.

Article 7 Powers And Duties Of The Board Of Directors

Section 1. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have the power to:

- (a) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Area and facilities, and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) suspend the voting rights and right to use of any recreational facilities of a member during any time period in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association; such rights may also be suspended, after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days, for an infraction of published rules and regulations;
- (c) exercise for the Association all powers, duties, and authority vested in or delegated to the Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of the Declaration or these By-Laws;
- (d) declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors;
- (e) prepare and adopt an annual budget, utilizing the prior year's budget and statements from outside authorities (including taxing entities, sewer districts, water companies, etc.) and reasonable estimations based thereon, including bids and projections, to estimate the amount of the annual budget;
- (f) review and pay, as appropriate, payment vouchers, bills and other such demands for payment, requiring, in all cases, adequate and complete verification of materials and labor furnished and expenses incurred, and inquiring into the reasonableness of all such items as necessary.

Section 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

- (a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs, and to present a statement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by members holding or representing one-fourth (1/4) of the votes allocated to Lots;
- (b) supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association, and see that their duties are properly performed;
- (c) as more fully provided in the Declaration, to:
 - (i) fix the amount of the annual assessment against each tot, at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period;

- (ii) send written notice of each assessment to every Owner at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and,
- (iii) foreclose any lien against a Lot for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date thereof, or to bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same.
- (d) issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon ten (10) days' notice to the manager of Board of Directors, and upon payment of a reasonable fee to be established by the Board, as statement of the account of the requesting Owner, setting forth the amount of any unpaid assessments or other charges due and owing from such Owner, with the provision that a representation on such statement that an assessment has been paid shall be conclusive evidence, as against the Association and the Board, that such payment was in fact made;
- (e) procure and maintain adequate liability and hazard insurance on property owned by the Association or for which the Association may be liable;
- (f) cause all officers and/or employees having fiscal responsibility to be bonded, if it may deem such appropriate;
- (g) cause the Common Area to be maintained, repaired and replaced as necessary, and designate and remove personnel necessary for the same, or delegate such duty to the manager, as the Board shall deem appropriate;
 - (h) adopt and amend, from time to time, administrative rules and regulations governing the operation and use of the Common Area and common elements, causing all such adoptions and amendments to be served in writing upon all Owners before the same shall become effective; and,
- (i) to obtain expert counsel, including legal and accounting counsel, as shall be necessary to adequately protect the Association, the Owners and the Board from liability and to adequately carry out the affairs of the Association and the Board and perform the duties of the Board.

Article 8 Officers And Their Duties

<u>Section 1. Enumeration of Officers.</u> The Officers of this Association shall be the President, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create.

<u>Section 2. Election of Officers.</u> The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following the annual meeting of the members.

<u>Section 3. Ierm.</u> The Officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for one (1) year unless he/she shall sooner resign, be removed, or otherwise become disqualified to serve.

Section 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 5. Resignation and removal. Any officer and/or Board member may be removed from office, with or without cause, at any time upon the affirmative vote of at least seventy-five percent (75.0%) of the votes allocated to Lots. Any officer or Board member may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, or the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

<u>Section 6. Vacancies.</u> A vacancy in any office or on the Board may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the office or Board member he/she replaces.

<u>Section 7. Multiple Offices</u>. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this Article.

Section 8. Duties. The duties of the Officers are as follows:

- (a) <u>President.</u> The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out, shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds, and other written instruments, and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes;
- (b) <u>Vice-President.</u> The Vice-President, who shall be a member of the Board, shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of the President's absence, inability, or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board;
- (c) <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members, keep the seal of the Association and affix it on all papers requiring such seal, serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members, keep appropriate current records showing the members of the Association together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board:
- (d) Ireasurer. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board, sign all checks and promissory notes of the Association with the President, keep proper books of account and financial records, cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year, and prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, and shall deliver a copy of such budget and statement to each member.

<u>Section 9. Compensation</u>. No Officer shall receive compensation for any service he/she shall render to the Association. However, any Officer may be reimpursed for his/her actual expenses incurred in the performance of his/her duties.

Article 9 Committees

<u>Section 1. Appointment.</u> The Board shall appoint an Architectural Control Committee, as provided in the Declaration, and a Nominating Committee, as provided in these By-Laws. The Board may also appoint such other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose.

<u>Section 2. Membership of Committees.</u> Members of a committee need not be members of the Board of Directors nor of the Association, except for the Nominating Committee, which shall consist of members of the Association.

Article 10 Books and Records

Section 1. Place of Keeping. The books, records, and papers of the Association and the Board shall, at all times, be kept at the offices of the Association, except when placed temporarily with attorneys, accountants, or other similar persons or entities. Such shall include copies of the Declaration and these By-Laws.

<u>Section 2.</u> Inspection by <u>Members</u>. All the books, records, and papers of the Association and the Board shall, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any member of the Association or his agent. Upon request, and for a reasonable fee determined by the Board, copies of such papers may be purchased by a member.

Article 11 Assessments

<u>Section 1. Method of Assessment.</u> Assessments for each Lot and/or Owner shall be established as set forth in the Declaration and elsewhere in these By-Laws. Assessments shall be based on the annual budget and/or upon estimations of actual expenses incurred or to be incurred. No assessment shall be made to create any sinking fund or establish funds for future expenditures not identified and budgeted.

Section 2. Liability for Assessments, Lien. As described in the Declaration, each Owner is obligated to pay to the Association annual and special assessments, which are secured by a continuing lien upon the property against which the assessment is made. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after its due date, the assessment shall bear interest as described in the Declaration and shall be subject to foreclosure or other action at law as is described in the Declaration. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessment provided for herein by non-use of the Common Area or abandonment of a Lot.

Article 12 Seal

Section 1. Authorization for Seal. The Association, should the Board of Directors deem such appropriate, may have a seal, but is not required to have such.

<u>Section 2. Use of Seal.</u> The seal of the Association, should such be authorized and procured, shall be used as directed by the Board of Directors, including usage to establish the authenticity of any record or document of the Association.

Article 13 Amendments

<u>Section 1. Method of Amendments.</u> The By-Laws may be amended at regular or special meetings of the members, by a vote of a majority of the votes allocated to Lots, so long as a quorum is present at such meeting in person or by proxy.

<u>Section 2. Conflicts.</u> In the event of any conflict between the terms of the Declaration and the terms of these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

<u>Section 3. Notice of Proposed Amendments.</u> Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment to these By-Laws shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is considered.

<u>Section 4. Certification. Recording.</u> A copy of each statement shall be certified by the President and Secretary of the Association as having been duly adopted and shall be effective when recorded in the public records of Ada County, Idaho.

Article 14 Miscellaneous

<u>Section 1. Fiscal Year.</u> The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and end on the thirty-first day of December of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of recording of the Declaration. The fiscal year of the Association may be changed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 2. Proof of Ownership. Proof of status as Owner shall be subject to such rules and regulations as the Board shall establish, but shall be rebuttably presumed from presentation of a recorded deed to the Lot or of a Contract of Purchase or similar document as to the Lot in question.

<u>Section 3. Parliamentary Rules.</u> Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of Association and Board meetings, when not in conflict with the Declaration or these By-Laws.

<u>Section 4. Initial Officers.</u> Until the first meeting of the Association and of the Board of Directors, Ruth A. Sigmont shall act as President and Walter T. Sigmont, Jr. shall act as Secretary.

The foregoing were adopted as the By-Laws of Rosera Subdivision Association by the acting President and Secretary of the Association on 3-23-12.

Luth a. Sigmont, Resident

APPROVED:

Walter T. Viamont Jr., Sevetary

The foregoing were adopted as the By-Laws of Rosera Subdivision. Association at the first meeting of the Spard of Directors on 3-23-72.

APPROVED: (State)-

BY-LAWS - PAGE 24"

STATE OF IDAHO

) 55.

EDUNTY OF ADA

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto placed my official hand and seal the day and year in this Certificate first above written.

Notary Public for Idaho

Residing at Meridian

Commission is is is letter Pires 7-1-94

Instrument = 4240743V

ADA COUNTY. 10. J. DAVID NA, ARR

ROSERA SUBDIVISION ASSOCIATION RECORDER 11631 W. ONEIDA BOISE, IDAHO 83709 (208) 362-3090

1478001

MEETING OF ROSERA SUBDIVISION HELD NOVEMBER 11, 1992

THE FOLLOWING RECORDS AND BY-LAWS OF THE ROSERA SUBDIVISION WERE VOTED TO BE CHANGED AT THE NOVEMBER 11, 1992 MEETING BY A UNANIMOUS VOTE.

A- ARTICLE 2 (PROPERTY RIGHTS) SECTION 4 IN REFERENCE TO EXHIBIT FOUR THERE WAS NO EXHIBIT 4 INCLUDED IN THE DECLARATION AND IT WAS VOTED ON TO EXCEPT EXHIBIT FOUR AS PRESENTED, SEE ATTACHED.

B- ARTICLE 2, SECTION 5 SHOULD READ AS FOLLOWS.

SECTION 5. EASEMENT TO ADJOINING PROPERTY. CERTAIN PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN AS A PORTION OF COUNTRY CLUB SUBDIVISION NO. 1. LYING IN THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SITE PLAN AND SOUTH OF THE PAVED ENTRANCE TO LOT 7, AND CONTIGUOUS TO LOT 7, SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO UTILIZE THE PAVED ENTRANCE ON LOT 7 AS INGRESS AND EGRESS FROM SAID CONTIGUOUS PROPERTY IF, AND ONLY IF, THE OWNER THEREOF AT THE TIME OF DEVELOPMENT WHICH WOULD REQUIRE SUCH INGRESS AND EGRESS IS EITHER DECLARANT OR WIRT EDMONDS (OR PARTNERSHIP OR CORPORATION OR JOINT ENTERPRISE WHEREIN EITHER OR BOTH OF SAID PERSONS ARE PARTNERS, SHAREHOLDERS, OR ENJOY ANY SUCH SIMILAR STATUS THEREIN), AND THE ASSOCIATION SHALL EXECUTE ANY DÖGUMENTS NECESSARY TO ESTABLISH SUCH INGRESS AND EGRESS OFFICIALLY (INCLUDED FURTHER DOCUMENTS ESTABLISHING AN EASEMENT) AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY APPROPRIATE PLANNING AND ZONING REQUIREMENTS TO ALLOW DEVELOPMENT OF SUCH CONTIGUOUS PROPERTY.

2- ARTICLE 3 (MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING).

A- SECTION 1. EVERY OWNER SHALL BE A MEMBER OF THE ASSOCIATION. MEMBERSHIP SHALL BE APPURTENANT TO AND MAY NOT BE SEPARATED FROM OWNERSHIP OF ANY LOT, MEMBERS MAY ALSO INCLUDE OWNER APPOINTED REPRESENTATIVES.

3- ARTICLE 3 (OF THE BY-LAWS) SECTION 4 TO READ.

A- SECTION 4. QUORUM. THE PRESENCE AT THE MEETING O MEMBERS ENTITLED TO CAST, OR THE PROXIES ENTITLED TO CAST 60% OF THE VOTES ALLOCATED TO LOTS, SHALL CONSTITUTE, QUORUM FOR ANY ACTION EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE DECLARATION OF THE BY-LAWS. IF, HOWEVER, SUCH QUORUM SHAL NOT BE PRESENT OR REPRESENTED AT ANY MEETING, THE MEMBER ENTITLED TO VOTE THEREAT SHALL HAVE THE POWER TO ADJOURI THE MEETING FROM TIME TO TIME, WITHOUT NOTICE OTHER THAI ANNOUNCEMENT AT THE MEETING, UNTIL A QUORUM AS AFORESAIL SHALL BE PRESENT OR BE REPRESENTED.

4- ARTICLE 6 (OF THE BY-LAWS) SECTION 1 TO READ.

A~ <u>SECTION 1.</u> REGULAR MEETINGS. REGULAR MEETINGS OF THI BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL BE HELD QUARTERLY, WITHOUT NOTICE AT SUCH PLACE AND HOUR AS MAY BE FIXED FROM TIME TO TIME B' RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD. SHOULD SAID MEETING FALL UPON A LEGAL HOLIDAY, THEN THAT MEETING SHALL BE HELD AT THE SAMI TIME ON THE NEXT DAY WHICH IS NOT A LEGAL HOLIDAY. NO MEETING SHALL BE HELD AT A DAY OR TIME WHICH WILL CONFLICT WITH AN' CREED OR RELIGIOUS BELIEF OF A BOARD MEMBER.

I HAVE REVIEWED THE CHANGES TO THE RECORDS AND BY-LAWS.

SIGNED 1

RUTH A. SIGMONT, PRESIDENT

APPROVED

WALTER T. SIGMONT JR., SECRETARY

Notarized 11/13/92 Robert A. Bauder My Commission expire 4/1/97

Robert a. Ga

Exhibit 3 Assessment of Expenses

Expenses subject to assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

Parking Lot upkeep, repair and improvements Street upkeep, repair and improvements Sewer line and facility upkeep, repair and improvement Common Area upkeep, repair and improvement General signage for the Property Legal fees and costs Technical and accounting fees and costs Property management fees and costs Supplies for the Association Enforcement costs Water costs Pump and irrigation costs Advertising for the Association Charitable donations, political donations and similar items for the Association Compliance costs Assessments made but discharged or extinguished

Exhibit 4 Usage Allocation of Garages and Carports

Garage usage is as follows:

· 🖎 . 🚊

Garages No. 1 and 2 assigned to Unit 1706. Garages No. 3 and 4 assigned to Unit 1718. Garages No. 5 and 6 assigned to Unit 1710. Garages No. 7 and 8 assigned to Unit 1714. Garages No. 9 and 10 assigned to Unit 1716. Garages No. 11 and 12 assigned to Unit 1720.

Carport usage is as follows:

Carports A, B, C and D assigned to Unit 1706. Carports A, B, C and D assigned to Unit 1710. Carports A, B, C and D assigned to Unit 1714. Carports A, B, C and D assigned to Unit 1716. Carports A, B, C and D assigned to Unit 1718. Carports A, B, C and D assigned to Unit 1720.